
Team name
Directorate 
T.01895 XXXXXX F.01895 XXXXX 
name@hillingdon.gov.uk www.hillingdon.gov.uk
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Building Location, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

Putting our residents first

External Services 
Select Committee
Date: TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 

2018

Time: 6.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Media are welcome to attend. 

Councillors on the Committee

Councillor John Riley (Chairman)
Councillor Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Simon Arnold
Councillor Teji Barnes
Councillor Kuldeep Lakhmana
Councillor Ali Milani
Councillor June Nelson
Councillor Devi Radia

Published: Monday, 5 November 2018

This agenda is available online at:
www.hillingdon.gov.uk or use a smart phone 
camera and scan the code below:

Contact: Nikki O'Halloran
Tel: 01895 250472
Email: nohalloran@hillingdon.gov.uk

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/


Useful information for 
residents and visitors

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room. 

Accessibility

An Induction Loop System is available for use 
in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information. 

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations.



Terms of Reference

1. To undertake the powers of health scrutiny conferred by the Local Authority (Public 
Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013.

2. To work closely with the Health & Wellbeing Board & Local HealthWatch in respect of 
reviewing and scrutinising local health priorities and inequalities.

3. To respond to any relevant NHS consultations. 

4. To scrutinise and review the work of local public bodies and utility companies whose 
actions affect residents of the Borough. 

5. To identify areas of concern to the community within their remit and instigate an 
appropriate review process.

6. To act as a Crime and Disorder Committee as defined in the Crime and Disorder 
(Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 and carry out the bi-annual scrutiny of 
decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by the 
responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions.

‘Select’ Panel Terms of Reference

The External Services Select Committee may establish, appoint members and 
agree the Chairman of a Task and Finish Select Panel to carry out matters within its 
terms of reference, but only one Select Panel may be in operation at any one time. 
The Committee will also agree the timescale for undertaking the review. The Panel 
will report any findings to the External Services Select Committee, who will refer to 
Cabinet as appropriate.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

1 Apologies for absence and to report the presence of any substitute 
Members

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3 Exclusion of Press and Public 
To confirm that all items marked Part I will be considered in public and that any items 
marked Part II will be considered in private

4 Minutes of the previous meeting - 30 October 2018 (TO FOLLOW)

5 Health Updates 1 - 56

6 Work Programme 57 - 64

PART II - PRIVATE, MEMBERS ONLY

7 Any Business transferred from Part I



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

EXTERNAL SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE – HEALTH UPDATES 

Committee name External Services Select Committee 

Officer reporting Nikki O’Halloran, Chief Executive’s Office

Papers with report Appendix A – Healthwatch Hillingdon Annual Report

Ward n/a

HEADLINES

To enable the Committee to receive updates and review the work being undertaken with regard 
to the provision of health services within the Borough.  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the External Services Select Committee notes the presentations. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (THH) 

THH services are provided from both Hillingdon Hospital and Mount Vernon Hospital.  The Trust 
has a turnover of around £222 million and employs over 3,300 staff.  It delivers high quality 
healthcare to the residents of the London Borough of Hillingdon, and increasingly to those living 
in the surrounding areas of Ealing, Harrow, Buckinghamshire and Hertfordshire, giving a total 
catchment population of over 350,000 people.

Providing the majority of services from the Trust, Hillingdon Hospital is the only acute hospital in 
Hillingdon with a busy Accident and Emergency, inpatients, day surgery, and outpatient clinics.  
Some services are also provided at the Mount Vernon Hospital in co-operation with the East & 
North Hertfordshire NHS Trust.  Mount Vernon Hospital has a modern Diagnostic and 
Treatment Centre which comprises a two-storey building and the existing Princess Christian 
Unit.  These buildings house four state-of-the-art operating theatres to carry out elective 
surgery, plus outpatient services, a spacious waiting area and coffee shop.

Care Connection Teams (CCT)
The Hillingdon Health Care Partnership (HHCP) comprises The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust; Central North West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL); H4All, a 
partnership of voluntary sector health care providers; and Hillingdon’s GP Federation, which 
brings together all of Hillingdon’s GPs.

HHCP brings hospital services, GPs and community care together in Care Connection Teams 
(CCTs), designed to help prevent emergency admissions to hospital among older residents, 
many of whom have complex medical conditions.  It also prioritises the identification of older 
people who might be at risk of an emergency hospital admission, and makes treatment in their 
own home the norm.

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

After a home visit from a Guided Care Nurse, which includes a top-to-toe medical examination 
and review of the patient’s medication, a care plan is drawn up in consultation with family and 
carers, and given to the patient with guidance on how to use it.  For example, it might include 
information about symptoms, so the patient can call the team for advice such as when to start 
medication if their situation has changed.  This helps to take pressure off GPs, reassures the 
patient that support is always available and, because they are known to the team and their 
treatment is regularly discussed, stops them having to endlessly describe their varying medical 
problems.  The whole system is designed to head off an admission to hospital through the use 
of early intervention. 

The Brunel Partners Academic Centre for Health Sciences 
The Brunel Partners Academic Centre for Health Sciences was officially launched at Brunel’s 
Uxbridge campus in November 2017.  The establishment of the Centre is a pioneering new 
partnership between The Trust, Central and North West London (CNWL) NHS Foundation Trust 
and Brunel University London.  The new Centre, jointly funded by the three partners, aims to 
revolutionise the way health and social care is delivered to meet the changing needs of society - 
moving away from delivering in a supply model, to where customers see it designed around 
them, and can exercise their own choice.  The Centre will bring about this transformation in 
Hillingdon by providing the perfect setting for research and developing new methods of 
healthcare delivery across allied health, nursing, social care and medicine.  

The Centre’s work will focus on five distinct areas:
 research and innovation 
 educating the workforce 
 outcomes-based care 
 quality improvement 
 digital health. 

Central and North West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL)

CNWL is a large and diverse organisation, providing health care services for people with a wide 
range of physical and mental health needs.  The Trust employs approximately 7,000 staff who 
provide healthcare to a third of London’s population and across wider geographical areas, 
including Milton Keynes, Kent, Surrey and Hampshire.

Community Mental Health Teams (CMHTs) work with patients to develop recovery goals and 
offer continuity of care.  They will assess the needs of the patient to make sure the treatment 
provided is personalised.  They also offer more intensive care when people need it most and 
help patients to work towards greater independence in managing health and wellbeing.
The Community Rehabilitation Team offers care coordination and support to people with a 
mental illness in supported living or care homes, with a view to helping develop independent 
living skills and improving quality of life.  Staff from a range of clinical backgrounds work within 
the CMHTs/Community Rehabilitation Teams, in addition to peer and employment support 
advisors.

 Single Point of Access - The Single Point of Access (SPA) offers mental health triage for 
routine, urgent and emergency referrals, mental health signposting, information and 
advice, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year.  SPA also incorporates CNWL's 
Urgent Advice Line (UAL), providing out of hours crisis support and advice.  The team 
consists of qualified clinicians who are able to direct callers to the most appropriate 
service to meet their needs.

Page 2



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

 Primary Care Mental Health Team - The team works within GP surgeries, helping people 
to adjust once discharged from secondary mental health services, or providing advice to 
GP's on what services to offer their patient.

 Talking Therapies - Hillingdon Talking Therapies is a free, confidential NHS service, 
which provides psychological treatment for depression and anxiety disorders, phobias 
and post-traumatic stress disorder.  Conditions are treated using a variety of therapeutic 
techniques, including cognitive behaviours therapy (CBT), interpersonal therapy (IPT) 
and couples therapy.  The service accepts referrals from GPs, health care professionals 
and self-referrals.

 Crisis and Home Treatment Team (HTT) - The team has doctors, nurses, social workers, 
occupational therapist and support workers who are available to support patients, carers 
and their families 24/7.  The team supports people in mental health crisis in their own 
homes and seeks to avoid unnecessary admissions to mental health inpatient settings.

 Liaison Psychiatry Team - The liaison psychiatry team work 24/7 alongside colleagues in 
A&E and general hospital wards, providing assessment, treatment and signposting to 
people who have a mental illness.

 Early Intervention Services - The service offers intensive support and treatment to people 
who have been diagnosed with a psychotic illness for the first time.  They work with 
people from 14 years old and offer support for up to 5 years.

 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) - CAMHS services are mostly 
provided in the community, but CNWL also has a specialist inpatient service for 8-13 year 
olds.  Family therapy plays an important role in CAMHS care

Acute mental health services provide assessment and treatment for adults with severe mental 
illness.  This may mean a person needs care as an inpatient in hospital or intensive support 
through a home treatment team in the community.

Royal Brompton and Harefield NHS Foundation Trust (RBH)

Royal Brompton and Harefield NHS Foundation Trust (RBH) is the largest specialist heart and 
lung centre in the UK and among the largest in Europe.  The Trust works from two sites:

o Royal Brompton Hospital in Chelsea, West London
o Harefield Hospital near Uxbridge

The Trust is a partnership of these two specialist heart and lung hospitals which are known 
throughout the world for their expertise, standard of care and research success.  They only 
provide treatment for people with heart and lung disease and carry out some of the most 
complicated surgery, and offer some of the most sophisticated treatment that is available 
anywhere in the world

Specialist trusts treat patients with rare and complex conditions in a specific area of health.  
Their clinical teams are skilled in the development and early adoption of new therapies and 
techniques, and many of the patients they care for cannot be treated in general hospitals.

Specialist trusts are at the forefront of innovation in healthcare and are often responsible for 
breakthroughs in treatments, which are then adopted by the whole healthcare system.  Clinical 
staff at specialist hospitals are experts in their chosen field and often relocate to specialist 
centres to further develop their skills.  UK specialist trusts welcome clinical specialists from 
around the globe.

Page 3

https://www.cnwl.nhs.uk/services/mental-health-services/acute/


Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

Among their many achievements, experts at RBH:
o pioneered intricate heart surgery for newborn infants born with a congenital heart disease
o performed the first successful heart and lung transplant in Britain
o implanted the first coronary stent
o achieved a world first by implanting a Tendyne transcatheter mitral valve system to treat 

a leaking mitral heart valve.

Research programmes play a vital role at both our hospitals.  This is because the most talented 
medical experts are rarely content with using tried and tested methods to treat their patients.  
The opportunity to influence the course of modern medicine by developing new treatments is a 
prospect that attracts them to specialist centres, where research opportunities are a 
fundamental part of delivering patient care.  Many medical advances made at the Trust have 
been taken up across the NHS and beyond.

Each year, between 500 and 600 papers by researchers associated with the Trust are 
published in peer-reviewed scientific journals, such as The Lancet and New England Journal of 
Medicine.  The Trust’s main partner is the National Heart and Lung Institute at Imperial College, 
London.  Additional research projects are run with other hospitals and universities in the UK and 
abroad.

RBH is the leading UK provider of respiratory care and is the national leader in the specialist 
areas of paediatric cardiorespiratory care, congenital heart disease and cystic fibrosis.  In 2016, 
the Trust cared for around 200,000 patients in its outpatient clinics and supervised around 
40,000 inpatient stays. It is one of the country's largest centres for the treatment of congenital 
heart disease, treating both children and adults and its clinical teams treat more than 10,000 
patients with these diseases each year (many receive care from their first few days of life 
through to adulthood).

The RBH heart attack centre at Harefield has pioneered the use of primary angioplasty for the 
treatment of heart attacks and has one of the fastest treatment times in the country at only 27 
minutes, compared to the national average of 42, a crucial factor in patients' survival.  The on-
site fetal cardiology service enables clinicians to begin caring for babies while still in the womb; 
some are scanned and diagnosed at just 12 weeks, when the heart measures just over a 
millimetre.

Harefield Hospital has more than 1,300 staff, five operating theatres and four catheter 
laboratories.  It has 168 beds, including beds for:

o cardiac and thoracic surgery
o cardiology
o day case unit
o adult intensive care
o the transplant unit. 

The hospital is a major centre for the treatment of:
o lung cancer
o chest cancer and oesophagal cancers
o other chest surgery.

Page 4



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

The hospital is one of the largest and most experienced centres in the world for heart and lung 
transplants and has jointly pioneered work in the development of ‘artificial hearts’ (also known 
as left ventricular assist devices or LVADs).

RNH’s dedicated heart attack centre deals with heart attack emergencies from outer north-west 
London, providing primary angioplasty in its specialist catheter laboratories.  It is thought that 
the Trust’s arrival-to-treatment time of 27 minutes is one of the fastest in Europe, where speed 
of treatment has been shown to be crucial to survival in these cases.

In the Care Quality Commission inspection report published on 10 January 2017, Harefield 
Hospital received an overall rating of Good.

NHS Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group (HCCG)

The proposal for new clinical commissioning groups was first made in the 2010 White Paper, 
‘Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS’ as part of the Government's long-term vision for the 
future of the NHS.  In order to shift decision-making as close as possible to patients, power and 
responsibility for commissioning services was devolved to local groups of clinicians.  The role of 
CCGs is set out in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and specifies that CCGs will:

 Put patients at the heart of everything the NHS does
 Focus on continually improving those things that really matter to patients – the outcome 

of their healthcare
 Empower and liberate clinicians to innovate, with the freedom to focus on improving 

healthcare services

HCCG has a governing body which meets in public each month and the agendas and papers 
for these meetings can be found on the CCG website.  The governing body is made up of GPs 
from the Hillingdon area and at least one registered nurse and one secondary care specialist 
doctor.  It is responsible for planning, designing and buying/commissioning local health services 
for Hillingdon residents including:

 Planned hospital care
 Urgent and emergency care
 Rehabilitation care
 Community health services
 Mental health and learning disability services

HCCG covers the same geographical area as the London Borough of Hillingdon and comprises 
all 46 GP practices across the Borough of Hillingdon.  As members of the HCCG, they guide the 
organisation and make sure the CCG is getting the most from the money it is allocated from the 
Government.

As a GP-led organisation, HCCG is in the unique position of being able to draw upon the first-
hand experience of our patients who use the health services that it commissions.  Taking into 
account their experiences, and talking to them about how best to meet their healthcare needs, 
HCCG can then commission the services that best meet their needs.

Hillingdon is the second largest of London’s 32 boroughs covering an area of 42 square miles.  
Hillingdon’s population for 2011 was estimated at 273,900 (13th largest in London), an increase 
of 2.93% over midyear estimates for 2010.  Hillingdon has a significantly higher population of 

Page 5



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

young people (aged 5-19) compared with England and London.  The population of older age 
groups (50+) is also larger than London but smaller than England.  Both groups are expected to 
increase ahead of average population growth rates.

HCCG’s vision is for a high performing, good quality and cost effective acute and community 
based health system for local residents, in an environment that delivers quality care, supports 
clinicians and is satisfying for all staff and members.  To help the Trust achieve this vision, it has 
three key strategic programmes in place: 

o the reconfiguration of hospital services through ‘Shaping a healthier future’; 
o out of hospital strategy; and
o financial recovery and savings programme.

The success of these programmes will be measured through a range of services outside of 
acute hospitals including expanded primary and community care which will lead to a reduction 
in acute activity and spend, and better integrated hospital and community care, including social 
care.  Working closely with providers, the local authority and community and voluntary sector 
groups is essential in for HCCG to achieve this.

In North West London (NWL), the CCGs are working together across the NHS to improve 
healthcare services for the two million residents who live in the area.  By working together, the 
CCGs can ensure that residents have better access to care, around the clock.  Whether that 
means being able to get appointments with a GP quickly and conveniently; making sure more 
specialist doctors are available, no matter what day of the week it is; that their mental health is 
considered at the same time as their physical health, with a single, coordinated approach by 
health and voluntary sector organisations; and that when a resident needs longer term care 
from different people, it is joined up and they don’t need to keep repeating their story.

NWL CCGs are also making sure the public helps shape care, involving them from an early 
stage in the design of services, and listening to their feedback along the way.  Through this joint 
approach, NWL CCGs will improve people’s health and wellbeing, giving them a better quality of 
life.

Sustainability and Transformation Plan
The NHS Five Year Forward view set out a national requirement for all local health and care 
systems to be integrated by 2020 in 2015.  In December 2015, it was announced that local 
areas would need to deliver this vision through sub-regional Sustainability and Transformation 
Plans (STPs).  The NHS North West London Collaboration of Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) decided to form a sub-regional plan for eight CCGs and corresponding local authorities: 
Brent, Ealing, Hammersmith and Fulham, Harrow, Hillingdon, Hounslow, Kensington and 
Chelsea, and Westminster.

In NWL, there is currently significant pressure on the whole system.  Both the NHS and local 
government need to find ways of providing care for an ageing population and managing 
increasing demand with fewer resources.  Over the next five years, the growth in volume and 
complexity of activity will outstrip funding increases.  But this challenge also gives partners an 
opportunity.  It is recognised that services are not joined up and don’t treat people holistically, 
that there is duplication and gaps and that there are inefficiencies that mean patients often have 
poor experiences, making them feel that their time is not necessarily valued.  NWL is focused 
on helping to get people well, but does not spend enough time preventing them from becoming 
ill in the first place.

Page 6



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

The NWL STP is the CCG plan for North West Londoners to be well and live well.  It gives the 
partners the opportunity to deliver better and more integrated health and social care and seek to 
address the three identified gaps over a five year period:

o The health and wellbeing gap – by preventing people from getting ill where possible and 
supporting people to stay healthy.

o The care and quality gap – by ensuring the delivery of consistently high-quality and 
person centred care.

o The £1.3 billion funding and efficiency gap – making sure services are structured and 
delivered as effectively and efficiently as possible. 

The NHS and all eight local authorities across NWL are working together to deliver a better 
health and care system.  Although there will be points of disagreement between different 
stakeholders, there is a general consensus that these points of disagreement will not stop the 
different parties from working together to improve the health and wellbeing of our residents.

In NWL, a working partnership between the NHS and the relevant local authorities has been the 
approach for a while.  The NWL CCGs are proud of their record of working together with all of 
the councils in NWL and the wider NHS and community and voluntary sector to deliver new and 
improved integrated services.

As part of the STP’s development, a governance structure has been established to oversee the 
delivery of the plan over the next four years, maintaining the links with local health and 
wellbeing boards.  This includes a Joint Health and Care Transformation Group that acts as the 
system leadership group and oversees the delivery of the STP.  Group representation comes 
from system leaders across NWL, including council, NHS and lay partners. Meetings take place 
on a monthly basis.

HCCG works closely with the London Borough of Hillingdon on health and social care issues.  
This close relationship with the Council is more important than ever as we deliver the Better 
Care Fund (BCF), which is a single pooled budget to support health and social care services to 
work more closely together in local areas.

The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust (LAS)

The LAS is the busiest emergency ambulance service in the UK and provides healthcare that is 
free to patients at the time they receive it.  It is also the only London-wide NHS trust.  The LAS 
has around 5,000 staff who work across a wide range of roles based in 70 ambulance stations 
and serve more than eight million people who live and work in the London area.  The service 
operates over an area of approximately 620 square miles, from Heathrow in the west to 
Upminster in the east, and from Enfield in the north to Purley in the south.

The LAS’ main role is to respond to emergency 999 calls, providing medical care to patients 
across the capital, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  Other services offered include providing 
pre-arranged patient transport and finding hospital beds.  Working with the police and the fire 
service, the LAS is prepared for dealing with large-scale or major incidents in the capital.

As the mobile arm of the health service in London, the LAS’ main role is to respond to 
emergency 999 calls, getting medical help to patients who have serious or life-threatening 
injuries or illnesses as quickly as possible.  The majority of patients, however, do not have 

Page 7



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

serious or life-threatening conditions and they don’t need to be sent an ambulance on blue 
lights and sirens.  Often they can receive more appropriate care somewhere other than at 
hospital.

As an emergency service in the capital, the LAS needs to be prepared to deal with large-scale 
incidents.  The biggest challenges the Trust has faced have been the London bombings in July 
2005, the Westminster and London Bridge terror attacks in 2017 and the tragic fire at Grenfell 
Tower in 2017.

The LAS was assessed by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in June 2015 when the Trust 
was given an overall rating of ‘inadequate’.  After being given a rating of ‘Requires improvement’ 
in a report published in June 2017, in May 2018 the LAS was rated as ‘Good’ overall and the 
care it provides was again rated as ‘Outstanding’.

Healthwatch Hillingdon

Healthwatch Hillingdon is a health watchdog run by and for local people.  It is independent of 
the NHS and the local Council.  Healthwatch Hillingdon aims to help residents get the best out 
of their health and social care services such as doctors, dentists, hospitals and mental health 
services and gives them a voice so that they can influence and challenge how health and care 
services are provided throughout Hillingdon.  Healthwatch Hillingdon can also provide residents 
with information about local health and care services, and support individuals if they need help 
to resolve a complaint about their NHS treatment or social care.

Healthwatch Hillingdon is one of 152 community focused local Healthwatch.  Together, they 
form the Healthwatch network, working closely to ensure consumers’ views are represented 
locally and nationally-led by Healthwatch England.  

Healthwatch Hillingdon is all about local voices being able to influence the delivery and design 
of local services.  Not just people who use them, but anyone who might need to in the future.  
By making sure the views and experiences of all people who use services are gathered, 
analysed and acted upon, Healthwatch can help make services better now and in the future.

To make sure that the voices of children and young people are heard, Healthwatch Hillingdon 
created Young Healthwatch Hillingdon (YHwH).  YHwH is made up of volunteers who represent 
the views of children and young people living, working or studying in Hillingdon.  They do this 
by:

o Sharing and promoting information about health issues and services that affect children 
and young people through events, social media updates and reports.

o Speaking to children and young people and gathering their views about what health 
issues and services are important to them.

o Working with health and social care services representatives to try to shape and improve 
services for children and young people.

Local Medical Committee (LMC)

Londonwide LMCs supports and acts on behalf of 27 Local Medical Committees (LMCs) across 
London.  LMCs represent GPs and practice teams in their negotiations with decision makers 
and stakeholders from health and local government to get the best services for patients.  They 
are elected committees of GPs enshrined in statute.  Londonwide LMCs and LMCs also provide 

Page 8



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

a broad range of support and advice to individuals and practices on a variety of professional 
issues.

A local medical committee is a statutory body in the UK.  LMCs are recognised by successive 
NHS Acts as the professional organisation representing individual GPs and GP practices as a 
whole to the Primary Care Organisation.  The NHS Act 1999 extended the LMC role to include 
representation of all GPs whatever their contractual status.  This includes sessional GP and GP 
speciality registrars.  The LMC represents the views of GPs to any other appropriate 
organisation or agency.

In the United Kingdom, LMCs have been the local GP committees since 1911.  They represent 
all General Practitioners in their geographical area which is historically coterminous with the 
successive Primary Care Organisations or other healthcare administrative areas.  As the 
organisation and complexity of primary care has increased, and along with the call for increased 
professionalism and specialisation of, for instance, negotiators, LMCs' administrative structures 
have developed from a pile of papers on the kitchen table of the LMC medical secretary to 
permanent staff and offices with substantial assets.  This has allowed the LMCs to develop 
relationships ranging over time, topic and space between mutual suspicion and antagonism to 
useful cooperation for common benefit with NHS administrative organisations.

Care Quality Commission (CQC)

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) makes sure that hospitals, care homes, dental and GP 
surgeries, and all other care services in England provide people with safe, effective, 
compassionate, high-quality care and encourages care services to improve.  The CQC does 
this by inspecting services and publishing the results on its website to help individuals make 
better decisions about the care they receive. 

The CQC:
o registers care providers.
o monitors, inspects and regulates services to make sure they meet fundamental standards 

of quality and safety and publishes what it finds, including performance ratings to help 
people choose care.

o sets out what good and outstanding care looks like and makes sure services meet 
fundamental standards below which care must never fall.  Where the CQC finds poor 
care, it will use its powers to take action.

o takes action to protect people who use services.
o speaks with its independent voice, publishing its views on major quality issues in health 

and social care.

Throughout its work, the CQC protects the rights of vulnerable people, including those restricted 
under the Mental Health Act.  It also listens to and acts on residents’ experiences, involves the 
public and people who receive care and work with other organisations and public groups.

Activities regulated by the CQC include:
o Treatment, care and support provided by hospitals, GPs dentists, ambulances and 

mental health services.
o Treatment, care and support services for adults in care homes and in people's own 

homes (both personal and nursing care).
o Services for people whose rights are restricted under the Mental Health Act.

Page 9



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

NHS Property Services (NHS PS)

NHS PS brings property and facilities management expertise to the NHS estate.  At a time of 
major change and increasing demand for the NHS, NHS PS attempts to reduce costs, create a 
more fit for purpose estate and generate vital funds that are reinvested to support improvements 
in frontline patient care.

NHS Property Services manages, maintains and improves the NHS properties and facilities 
within its portfolio, working in partnership with NHS organisations to create efficient, sustainable 
and modern healthcare and working environments.  The organisation has a major role as both 
landlord and service provider for NHS customers and services fall into four main business 
areas:

 Strategic estates planning – supporting customers to deliver healthcare premises that 
meet future needs for patient services.  This includes: strategic estates planning; 
commercial property advice; capital investment; and property development.

 Asset management – acting as landlord, disposing of surplus properties that 
commissioners decide are no longer needed, regularising leases and developing new 
facilities.  This includes: property management; planning and development; property 
disposals; new property purchases; rent reviews; lease renewals; and lease 
regularisation.

 Construction project management – managing the development of new buildings and 
refurbishment of existing buildings, along with investment in its estate.  This includes: 
new build; contract management; procurement; and refurbishment.

 Facilities management (FM) services – including health and safety, maintenance, 
electrical services, cleaning and catering.

NHS PS is playing a vital role in helping the NHS make the most of its property.  A key part of 
NHS England’s Five Year Forward View is to make the estate more efficient to save money, 
free-up resources and provide buildings suitable for new ways of delivering healthcare.  The 
Property Strategy team at NHS PS has been supporting Clinical Commissioning Groups and 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan groups to look at ways of better using the local health 
and public estate.

Strategic estates planning helps the NHS plan for the future and use the existing estate more 
effectively.  The process can benefit patients and the NHS by:

 Reducing running and holding costs;
 Reconfiguring the estate to better meet commissioning needs;
 Sharing property (particularly with social care and the wider public sector);
 Identifying property that is no longer needed, leading to sale receipts for reinvestment; 

and 
 Ensuring money for improvements is invested in the right place at the right time.

NHS PS works closely with the Department of Health’s other property company, Community 
Health Partnerships to provide expertise to local health systems on behalf of NHS England and 
the Department of Health.  The advice NHS PS provides is: independent; in the interests of the 
local healthcare system as a whole; and tailored to meet local needs.  The organisation also 
helps commissioners deliver their strategic estate plans so they realise tangible benefits from 
the process and supports the NHS by seeking sources of funding for projects.

Page 10



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

Witnesses

Representatives from the following organisations have been invited to attend the meeting: 
 The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (THH)
 Central & North West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL)
 Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust (RBH)
 Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group (HCCG)
 The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust (LAS)
 Healthwatch Hillingdon (HH)
 Hillingdon Local Medical Committee (LMC)
 NSP Property Services (NHS PS)

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Hillingdon

Annual Report 
2017/18 

Appendix A

Page 13



Healthwatch Hillingdon     2 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 Contents 
 

Foreword - Councillor Philip Corthorne 3 

Message from our Chair 4 

Message from our Chief Executive 6 

Message from our New Chair 8 

Highlights from our year 9 

Who we are                                                    10 

It starts with you  11 

Your views on health and care 21 

Helping you find the answers 28 

Making a difference together 31 

Our people 35 

Our plans for next year 41 

Our finances 42 

Getting in touch 43 

Page 14



Healthwatch Hillingdon     3 

Foreword 

Councillor 
Philip 
Corthorne  

Once more it is my 
pleasure to welcome  
you to Healthwatch 
Hillingdon's latest annual 
report. You will see, 
herein, the valuable work 
Healthwatch undertakes 
on behalf of residents in 
what has been a full and 
challenging year.    

I would like to place on record, on behalf 
of Hillingdon's Health and Wellbeing 
Board, our grateful thanks to Stephen 
Otter who has now stepped down as 
Chairman. Stephen has been involved 
with Healthwatch Hillingdon since its 
inception and has been a full and 
welcome member of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, we wish him well for 
the future. We also look forward to 
working with Lynn Hill, who takes on the 
Chair's role, and wish her every success. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I also congratulate the Healthwatch 
Hillingdon team: the voluntary Board  
of Trustees, Graham Hawkes and the 
small staff team, and the number of 
volunteers who have made the work of 
Healthwatch possible.   

Last, but certainly not least, thank you 
to the public who have taken the time to 
tell your story, to engage and discuss so 
that the ‘voice of the customer’ can be 
heard. I encourage everyone to continue 
to do so. 

Councillor Philip Corthorne MCIPD 

Cabinet Member for Social Services, 
Housing, Health and Wellbeing,  
London Borough of Hillingdon 

 

Thank you to the public who have 
taken the time to tell your story,  
to engage and discuss so that  
the "voice of the customer" can 
be heard. I encourage everyone  
to continue to do so 

Page 15



Healthwatch Hillingdon     4 

Message from 
our Chair 

Welcome to the fifth 
Annual Report from 
Healthwatch Hillingdon.  

I am delighted to be 
able to report that  
we have continued  
to build on our 
excellent progress  
in helping to achieve  
real improvements  
in local health and 
social care services, 
although there is much 
still to be done. 

As in previous years, we can highlight 
several areas where the organisations 
that run our local health and care 
services have acted upon our 
representations and made improvements 
to services.  

One of our main responsibilities is to 
listen to residents of Hillingdon so that 
we understand the things that are most                      

 

important and the extent to which 
services are currently meeting your needs 
or expectations. We use this information 
to illustrate where patients and service 
users want to see changes, provide as 
much evidence as we can to support the 
need for improvement and we monitor 
progress being made by the appropriate 
agency. We are not always successful in 
obtaining the changes wanted by 
residents, but we will continue to 
robustly represent your views and needs. 

As in previous years the report highlights 
many examples of areas where 
Healthwatch Hillingdon has been 
instrumental in achieving change in local 
provision. 

Our overriding priority for the future is to 
continue our successful work in helping to 
obtain local improvements in services. 

In addition to following up issues in any 
service, we are doing some work in 
specific areas. 

I am proud to welcome the formation of 
Young Healthwatch Hillingdon. We now 
have 19 young people who are engaging 
with Healthwatch Hillingdon activities to 
ensure that their views are heard and 
shared. 

We shall also continue to examine bigger 
changes being proposed to the way in 

Our aim is to give Hillingdon 
residents a voice to influence local 
change and to continue to highlight 
those services which fail to meet 
expectations. 

Page 16



Healthwatch Hillingdon     5 

which health and care services are 
delivered to protect residents’ interests.  

Once again, I would like to offer a huge 
thank you to Graham Hawkes, his team, 
the volunteers and the Board Members 
for their hard work, effort and support 
which have resulted in a successful year 
for Healthwatch Hillingdon. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I would like to offer our thanks to 
Stephen Otter who, after six years’ 
dedication to Healthwatch Hillingdon, 
both as Vice Chair and Chair, has 
resigned from the Board. We wish him 
well and in return welcome Lynn Hill to 
the Board as Chair elect. Lynn will be 
formally taking up her role in June 2018. 

Turkay Mahmoud  
Interim Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



Healthwatch Hillingdon     6 

Message 

from our 

Chief 

Executive 
Welcome to the 

Healthwatch Hillingdon 

Annual Report  

2017-2018. The story 

of another busy, 

challenging, sad, but 

very rewarding year. 

In December 2017 we said goodbye to one 

of our original Trustees and Chair of our 

Board, Stephen Otter. Stephen brought us 

refreshing leadership and drive and I 

thank him for all he did and the support 

he gave me throughout his tenure. 

I would also like to express my 

appreciation to Turkay Mahmoud for 

becoming Acting Chair and leading us so 

capably during the remainder of the year. 

We sadly also said goodbye to our 

colleague Raj Grewal at the beginning of 

2018 as he set off for new adventures in 

Africa. A long- standing member of our 

staff, Raj was dedicated to serving the 

Hillingdon public and is greatly missed by 

us all. 

Operationally, we have continued to 

ensure the users of Hillingdon’s health 

and social care services have a strong 

voice. 

 

In the first half of the year we 

concentrated on promoting and 

embedding the learning from our 

maternity and discharge reports. 

Our partnership working influenced 

service improvement plans and it was 

really pleasing to see the ‘Working 

Together’ information booklet rolled out 

across The Hillingdon Hospitals, as an aid 

to help patients through their inpatient 

stay.  

With other North West London 

Healthwatch, we challenged the legality 

of the original proposed changes to 

prescribing. We were successful in not 

only ensuring the policy was changed but 

made sure the engagement material used 

by the North West London Clinical 

Commissioning Groups was a fair 

representation of the proposed policy 

and was written in a way the public could 

understand. 

We engaged across Hillingdon to find  

out what you thought of the new 

Extended Hours GP service. Over 1000 of 

you told us your views and we are 

currently using that evidence to shape 

and change how the service will be 

delivered in the future. 

 

Page 18



Healthwatch Hillingdon     7 

The most exciting development for us 

this year has been our work to give 

children and young people in Hillingdon a 

voice. 

Starting Young Healthwatch Hillingdon 

and the projects to support young people 

raise awareness of emotional wellbeing 

in schools has been truly inspirational 

work for us. 

With over 20 enthusiastic young 

members, trained and ready to get 

involved, we are really looking forward 

to seeing Young Healthwatch progress in 

2018. 

This year nearly 1000 people have come 
into the shop, or contacted us, for 
information or advice. We have helped 
people to find services to meet their 
needs and empowered others to navigate 
the system. We have seen a lot of 
positive feedback this year and seeing 
the difference we have made to people’s 
lives makes this a very rewarding part of 
our role.  

It takes a real team effort to achieve the 
work which is outlined in this report and I 
would like to personally thank everybody 
who has made a contribution to 
Healthwatch Hillingdon this year: 

 The staff team - Pat, Charmaine, 
Kim and Raj - who are passionate 
about what we do 

 

 The Healthwatch Hillingdon Board 
for their governance, leadership 
and support 

 Our volunteers, who have donated 
nearly 2000 hours of their time 
and expertise, to make a 
difference in their community 

 

 You, the public, who have told us 
your stories, experiences and 
views. 

Our success over the last five years has 
shown that we can improve services; but 
we cannot do that without knowing 
people’s experience of care in 
Hillingdon.  

That is why we need to hear from you, 
your family, friends and neighbours. By 
telling us your experience we can change 
care services in our community together.  

Finally, I would like to extend a warm 
welcome to our Chair Elect, Lynn Hill. I 
look forward to working with Lynn when 
she takes up her role in June, as we look 
to build on our success and take 
Healthwatch Hillingdon into the next era.  

Graham Hawkes 

Chief Executive Officer 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Healthwatch Hillingdon     8 

 

Message 

from our 

new Chair  
I am delighted and 
privileged to have 
joined Healthwatch 
Hillingdon this year as 
Chair Elect and am very 
excited to be taking on 
the Chairman’s mantle 
from June onwards. 

Firstly, I would like to say I am extremely 
grateful to Turkay Mahmoud for leaving 
the organisation in such good shape and 
to Graham Hawkes for his strong and 
focused leadership as our Chief Executive 
Officer.  

My career has been spent entirely in 
healthcare and I recently retired from 
the NHS having completed almost 40 
years. I qualified as a Biomedical 
Scientist in Hematology in 1981 and went 
on to Chair the UK Scientific Advisory 
Panel. I have a keen interest in patient 
safety and studied for the Capsticks 
Diploma in Clinical Risk Management. I 
am also a graduate of the Kings Fund Top 
Manager Programme. More recently, I 
became a Healthcare Manager and held a 
number of director roles including those 
of Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Chief 
Executive Officer. 

I believe that patients should be at the 
heart of everything we do and that all  

      

patients should have a voice. Patient 
engagement is the key to really getting 
‘under the bonnet’ of what is going  
on in any healthcare setting and the 
Uxbridge shop, situated in the Pavilions 
Shopping Centre, provides an excellent 
point of reference and signposting service 
for our patients and carers alike. I am 
looking forward to working with our 
Board and local stakeholders to ensure 
that standards are maintained and 
enhanced and the local patients within 
the Borough of Hillingdon continue to 
access and receive high quality health 
and social care. 

The team at Healthwatch Hillingdon have 
set the bar very high with their 
achievements over the last few years and 
I have been particularly impressed by the 
partnership working with Hillingdon 
Hospital on discharge planning and with 
the work done with young people’s 
mental health. Links with the Council are 
also strong and collaborative.  

During the course of the next few 
months, the Board and I will be looking at 
our work plan and seeing where our 
efforts can be best utilised to ensure we 
continue to add value to the local 
healthcare economy. 

Lynn Hill - Chair Elect (June 2018)

Page 20



Healthwatch Hillingdon     9 

Highlights 

from our 

year 

Page 21



Healthwatch Hillingdon     10 

Who we are 

 
Healthwatch Hillingdon 
is completely separate 
from the NHS and the 
local authority. 
We represent the views 
of everyone who uses 
health and social care 
services in the London 
Borough of Hillingdon.  
We make sure that 
these views are 
gathered, analysed and 
acted upon, making 
services better now and 
in the future. 

Our vision 

Our vision is to become the influential 
and effective voice of the public. 

We want to ensure that local decision 
makers put the experiences of people at 
the heart of their work, giving adults,  

 

 

 

young people, children and communities 
a greater say in - and the power to 
challenge - how health and social care 
services are run in Hillingdon. This vision 
is founded on the strong belief that 
services work best when they are 
designed around the needs and 
experiences of the people who use them. 

Our priorities 

The focus of our work for 2017-19 has 
been aligned with our Strategic Priorities 
and selected to reflect our statutory 
requirements, and the findings from  
in-depth analysis of data and intelligence 
gathered from our residents. 

The key areas for 2017-18 were: 

 Youth Engagement Project 

 Extended hours GP Access 

 Maternity and Hospital Discharge 
follow-up 

Page 22



Healthwatch Hillingdon     11 

  

Page 23



Healthwatch Hillingdon     12 

How your 
experiences are 
helping to 
influence 
change 

New Perinatal Mental 

Health Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The evidence from both our Children and 
Adolescent Mental Health Service 
(CAMHS) reports and our Maternity report 
outlined the need for a comprehensive 
perinatal mental health service for 
Hillingdon’s women. 

Following our CAMHS report a small 
service was commissioned, which has 
since been built upon; but as our 
Maternity report outlined, the service 
was not meeting demand. 

In June 2017, the North West London 
Clinical Commissioning Group 
Collaboration (NWL CCG) launched a 
new, comprehensive perinatal mental 
health service to support women who 

develop a mental health illness during 
pregnancy, or in the first year following 
birth. This also offers pre- conception 
advice to women who already have a 
mental health condition. 

It is really pleasing to see the part our 
work has played in influencing change 
and improving services. 

Changes to GP 

Prescribing 

Through listening to patient experiences, 
we have been an effective force on the 
NWL CCG Collaborative on their proposed 
changes to GP prescribing. Through our 
seats on the NHS Hillingdon CCG and the 
NWL Integrated Lay Partners’ Group we 
have been able to challenge the legality 
of the process and shape the proposals 
and the development of the engagement 
materials to ensure they were fair and 
not confusing for the public. 

Healthwatch Hillingdon was extremely 
disappointed that only a three-week 
exercise was carried out for such an 
important change. We have been very 
vocal in our disappointment, producing a 
public statement. See ‘Choosing Wisely’  

https://bit.ly/2s8HquS 

 

On-Line Medication 

Last year feedback from our residents 
gave us cause to raise concern with the 
Medicines and Healthcare Products 
Regulatory Agency, Healthwatch England, 
and the Care Quality Commission, 
regarding patients gaining access to 
restricted, prescription-only medication 
via online platforms. 

Page 24

https://bit.ly/2s8HquS


Healthwatch Hillingdon     13 

We were delighted to see the regulators 
and professional bodies acting jointly  
to take enforcement action against 
UK-based suppliers and launch a  
high-profile public awareness campaign 
to highlight the inherent risks and 
dangers that off-shore online suppliers 
may pose; and offer guidance to the 
public on how to remain safe when 
accessing online healthcare services. 

 

Young People’s Mental 

Health and Wellbeing  

 
 

In 2015 Healthwatch Hillingdon produced 
‘Seen & Heard – Why not now?’; a report 
that highlighted children and young 
people’s lived experiences of mental 
health and wellbeing services in 
Hillingdon. 

Since this date we have continued to 
advocate for service change for young 
people, both locally and nationally.  

Thrive 

In Hillingdon, partners have adopted the 
Thrive Model and are working with 
children and their families to develop 
new models of care.  This year we have 

seen quicker access for children to 
services, waiting lists significantly reduce 
and a 13% increase in the number of 
children receiving services.  

In the coming year, a new early 
intervention and prevention approach is 
being introduced, training will be 
provided to develop school’s emotional 
wellbeing support for children and in July 
2018 an online counselling service is 
being launched.  

 

Are we listening? 

Nationally, we were invited by the Care 
Quality Commission to be a member of 
their Expert Advisory Group as they 
carried out a Thematic Review of 
children and young people’s mental 
health services.  This gave us an 
opportunity to report on the findings of 
our engagement and ensure that the 
voice of Hillingdon’s children is shaping 
national policy. 

This was further enhanced in September 
2017 when we were asked by the Care 
Quality Commission to engage with young 
people who had used mental health and 
wellbeing services in Hillingdon, to 
determine their experiences of mental 
health services.  

Twenty-five young people and family 
members of young people participated 
across a series of focus groups and 
through an online survey. Their feedback 
was included in the CQC’s Stage 2 report 
“Are we Listening?”  

Page 25



Healthwatch Hillingdon     14 

 

View the full report: https://bit.ly/2Kyrkon 

Published in March 2018, it describes 
what makes it easier and what makes it 

harder for local systems to ensure that 
children and young people have timely 
access to high-quality mental health care, 

and what action CQC recommends to help 
improve care across the system. 

Our Work With Schools 

Throughout the past year we have 
expanded our work with schools. We have 
always offered opportunities for work 
experience, but this year we have built 
on existing relationships and forged new 
ones to deliver and get involved in 
programmes to really engage young 
people with health and wellbeing. 

Global Academy 

This year we established a new 
partnership with Global Academy; a 
unique school in Hayes, which enables 

14- to 18-year olds to work towards their 
GCSEs and A Levels, but also gain the 
skills needed to work in the broadcast 
and digital media industry.  

Our joint recognition of the importance 
of educating, empowering and supporting 
young people to understand mental 
health, tackle stigma and discrimination 
and manage their own mental health and 
wellbeing, has led to us working together 
on some new, exciting projects. 

Mental Health and Wellbeing Assemblies  

Kim, our Community Engagement Officer 
for Children and Young People, and a Year 
12 Global Academy student, co-delivered 
assemblies about mental health and 
wellbeing to the whole student body. 

Global Academy Charity Tuesday 

We attended this event to give students 
the opportunity to find out about 
Healthwatch Hillingdon, the volunteer 
roles available to them and how they 
could make a difference by getting 
involved with the organisation. 

 

Enterprise Assignment Project 

As part of their curriculum, Global 
Academy’s Year 12 students participated 
in an Enterprise Assignment Project 
which required them to create audio, 
visual and social media content based on 
briefs given. 

Global Academy asked if Healthwatch 
would provide a brief. We asked students 
to create content aimed at young people 
that would raise awareness of mental 
health, challenge stigma and  

It was fantastic to work with Kim and the team at Healthwatch Hillingdon. We’re 
very proud of the partnership so far this year and look forward to growing it in 
years to come. [It provided] the opportunity to give our students the chance to 
understand mental health and tackle stigma and discrimination within a safe and 
suitable environment. HwH are a fantastic team to work with and we look forward 
to more in the future.    –  Jonathan Jacob, Community and Business Development Manager 

Page 26

https://bit.ly/2Kyrkon


Healthwatch Hillingdon     15 

 

discrimination, and provide young people 
with information about support available 
to them. 

On Tuesday 20 March 2018 we visited the 
school to hear the pitches the students 
had created. Students presented social 
media campaigns, audio experiences and 
short films. We were blown away by the 
standard of the work, it was so thoughtful 
and impactful. We are keen to make use 
of everything the students have created 
and will work with them over the coming 
year to do this through our social media. 

Mental Health, Wellbeing 

and Life Skills Pilot 

As part of our recommendations to 
commissioners on how services could be 
improved, we outlined several initiatives 
which were required in schools, including 
developing children and young people’s 
social and emotional skills. 

We wanted to help schools build on the 
existing good work they do in this area, 
and two excellent opportunities 
presented themselves for us to do this.  

 

 

Barnhill Community High School 

Our Mental Health, Wellbeing and Life 
Skills Programme was created to be 
delivered in the school following a pupil 
from Barnhill joining us for work 
experience and a conversation we had 
with their teacher about emotional 
wellbeing. 

The programme is designed to support 
schools to develop a whole school 
approach to promoting children and 
young people’s emotional wellbeing 
through: 

 Developing students’ confidence, 
knowledge and skills, which can help 
them to be emotionally resilient and 
mentally healthy, as well as improving 
their educational attainment and 
career prospects. 

 Increasing whole school community 
awareness and understanding of 
mental health issues, contributing to 

Page 27



Healthwatch Hillingdon     16 

reduced stigma and discrimination and 
a more open and accepting school 
environment. 

 Increasing whole school knowledge of 
how to access appropriate wellbeing 
and mental health information and 
support. 

We successfully applied for funding from 

Hillingdon Community Trust and delivered 

the programme as a pilot at Barnhill 

between November 2017 and March 2018. 

 

 

 

 

Northwood School 

 

In July 2017, we were invited to present 
about the Five Ways to Wellbeing at a 
mental health and wellbeing event 
organised by Northwood School students. 

We were keen to maintain a relationship 

with the school and offered to deliver a 

shortened version of our Mental Health, 

Wellbeing and Life Skills Programme as 

part of the Personal, Social and Health 

Education (PSHE) curriculum. They were 

enthusiastic about getting involved so we 

delivered a five-week version during 

February and March 2018. 

The whole of Year 10 participated, with 

Healthwatch delivering some sessions and 

teachers delivering others. At the end of 

the five weeks, students created a mental 

health awareness campaign for their 

school including assemblies, posters and 

information sessions.  
 

Extending GP 

Opening Hours  
- the Hillingdon public’s 

view 

In April 2016, NHS England published their 
plans to strengthen and redesign the 
services provided by GP surgeries. Part of 
these plans looked to increase the 
number of appointments available for 
patients and provide access to GP 
services 8am–8pm, seven days per week. 

In October 2017 a new service was 

started in Hillingdon which made it 

possible for GP practices in Hillingdon  

to offer patients ‘extended hours 

appointments’ every weekday evening 

from 6:30pm to 8pm, and between 8am 

and 8pm on Saturdays and Sundays. 

The programme has been a success 
at Barnhill as children have become 
more aware of mental health and 
know that there is no shame in 
talking about it. 

- Carol Graham, Teacher in Charge; 
Health and Social Care 
(Barnhill Community High School) 

Better than my own GP - good at 
providing service, and better 
quality of service. It changed my 
son's life 

Page 28



Healthwatch Hillingdon     17 

The service provides additional GP and 

nurse appointments which are bookable 

through the patient’s own GP practice 

and are available at three hubs located in 

Uxbridge (at Central Uxbridge Surgery), 

Pinner (at Eastcote Health Centre) and 

Hayes (at Hesa Centre). 

The Healthwatch Hillingdon ‘GP Access 

Project’ looked to gather the views of 

residents registered with a Hillingdon GP. 

We wanted to find out the public’s 

opinion on being able to see a GP outside 

of the traditional Monday to Friday 

opening hours, and how they would like 

to access the ‘extended hours 

appointments’. 

Our survey was completed by 1023 

Hillingdon residents. In addition to online 

completions, Healthwatch staff attended 

community group sessions, libraries, 

public houses, churches, schools, 

colleges, hospitals, retail shops, the 

Older People’s Assembly and a mosque to 

ensure we canvassed all demographics. 

 

View the full report: 
https://bit.ly/2pJyPwb 

Summary of Findings 

Most residents agreed that ‘extended 

opening hours’ for GP services should be 

available to all patients registered with a 

GP practice in Hillingdon. 

It should be noted that some people do 

believe that in the case of routine 

appointments, priority should be given to 

those who are in full-time work or who 

cannot attend during normal working 

hours. A minority thought that 

appointments should also be made 

available for those not registered with a 

Hillingdon GP such as people visiting 

relatives in the borough. 

One of the disappointing aspects for 

Healthwatch Hillingdon is that patients 

were clearly unaware of the new service. 

Given that Hillingdon’s Urgent Care 

Centre and A&E departments are under 

extreme pressure and the residents have 

expressed a keen interest to attend these 

appointments, Healthwatch Hillingdon 

feel it is essential that residents who are 

registered with a Hillingdon GP know that 

the ‘extended hours appointments’ are 

available and how they can book them. 

Discharge From 

Hospital 

What’s happened since our 
2016/17 report 

This project engaged with older people 
who had recently been discharged from 
Hillingdon hospital. We followed their 
journey from hospital back into the 
community to gain a better 
understanding of the discharge process 
and the care and support provided when 
they were back home. 

In February 2017 we published the results 

Page 29

https://bit.ly/2pJyPwb


Healthwatch Hillingdon     18 

of the engagement with 172 patients, 
carers, family, and staff from over 20 
organisations in our report Safely ‘Home’ 
to the Right Care. 

Based on the evidence attained we made 
nine recommendations to commissioners 
and providers on how the patient 
experience could be improved.  

Eight of the recommendations have been 
adopted by health and social care 
partners and now form part of the Better 
Care Fund Plan 2017/19, and the 
Discharge Improvement Programme 
within Hillingdon. Both of these are 
monitored by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and A&E Delivery Board. 

The one area that has seen no 
progress is the provision of dosette 
boxes for patients who are 
prescribed multiple medications to 
take home. The hospital remains 
unable to provide them and 
further work is required to look for 
possible solutions to this issue. 

Improvements following our 
report: 

Implementation of a reviewed 
patient journey booklet. This was 
a Trust booklet titled ‘Working 
Together’. As part of the Discharge 
project we worked with patients, 
health and social care partners, 
and the Trust to redesign the 
booklet, making it more effective 
for patients and their families. 
35,000 copies were printed, and 
the booklet rolled out. 

Written provision of information 
about social care and continuing 
health assessments for 
patient/carers has been 
developed. 

A standardised consistent 
discharge process is now across all 

wards with the introduction of 
‘Red to Green’. 

A review was completed of the unfit 
for purpose discharge lounge. 
Immediate actions were taken to 
provide hot food and drinks for 
patients waiting a long time for 
transport home. 

We recommended when 
discharging an older person that it 
becomes standard practice to 
refer them to Hillingdon Carers for 
further support. This has been 
adopted and incorporated in the 
Better Care Fund Scheme. 

We recommended that serious 

consideration be given to a single 

point of access for discharge. This 

is now being developed for end of 

life services with possible 

expansion to other areas. 

We recommended an advocacy 

service where a patient and their 

family have substantial difficulty 

understanding the discharge 

process. This is a workstream that 

is being progressed.  

We recommended a review of the 

integrated discharge team to 

increase resource. This has been 

carried out and a new team is now 

in place with social workers based 

at the hospital. 

Page 30



Healthwatch Hillingdon     19 

Expecting the 

Perfect Start 

What’s happened since our 
2016/17 report… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ealing Hospital’s maternity unit closed in 
July 2015 under the NWL Shaping a 
Healthier Future reconfiguration 
programme. It was expected that an 
additional 600 women would give birth at 
Hillingdon Hospital’s maternity unit in 
2016/17. Healthwatch Hillingdon decided 
to measure the impact of the closure of 
Ealing on the experience of women giving 
birth at Hillingdon hospital. 

During our engagement we spoke with 
251 women who were using the hospital 
maternity services, or had given birth 
since the change. We also collected views 
from midwives, children’s centre staff, 
and doctors. 

In March 2017 we published our report 
which outlined the very positive feedback 
we had received and gave an indepth 
understanding of Hillingdon’s Maternity 
Services. 

Since then we have continued to monitor 
the recommendations we made to help 
further improve the care provided. 

Improvements following our 
report: 

Staff are still continuing to explain 
literature given to patients which 
helps with their understanding. 
This has also been enhanced by 
the introduction of the ‘baby 
buddy’ app, which contains all the 
information a woman will require 
through their pregnancy and 
motherhood. 

 We were also really pleased to 
see that in March 2018 the 
North West London Clinical 
Commissioning Groups looked to 
provide clear, uniform 
information to all mums and 
families across North West 
London when they published a 
new information booklet in 
collaboration with the National 
Childbirth Trust.  

We recommended a review of the 
interpreting services to support 
women. Staff are ensuring that 
women who require translation 
services are made aware of the 
availability both face to face and 
over the phone. 

A recommendation to review the 
continuity of care between 
women and their health 
professionals to meet the 
expectations of the National 
Maternity review ‘Better Births’ 
has been delivered through a 
Transformation programme being 
implemented through 2018. 

 

 

Page 31



Healthwatch Hillingdon     20 

A recommended review of the 
referral process between the 
hospital and the London Borough 
of Hillingdon, who provide the 
smoking cessation service, is 
underway.  

We recommended Hillingdon 
Clinical Commissioning Group 
work with The Shaping a Healthier 
Future team and Hillingdon 
Hospital to review the provision 
of antenatal and postnatal clinics 
in Ealing. The service provision is 
in place and being monitored to 
ensure effective outcomes. 

 

Page 32



Healthwatch Hillingdon     21 

Your views on 

health and care

 

Page 33



Healthwatch Hillingdon     22 

Listening to 

people’s views 

 

This year we have: 

❑ Recorded direct engagement with 

2922 members of the public. This has 

been through our projects, our shop, 

and public engagements. 

❑ 1026 engaged through our GP Access 

Project by completing a survey. 125 

from this survey asked to be regularly 

informed of the work of Healthwatch, 

and 48 said they wanted to get 

involved.  

❑ We have seen a successful campaign 

which has meant engaging directly 

with over 1000 young people and 

children in Hillingdon. 

❑ We engaged directly with our older 

people (over 65) at the annual Older 

People’s Assembly, hearing views from 

110 older people quarterly. 

❑ Healthwatch attended 58 events in 

our community libraries, children’s 

centres, and coffee mornings held by 

organisations such as: The Salvation 

Army, Hillingdon Carers, Parkinson’s 

UK, and the Alzheimer’s society. 

 

Promotion and 

Communication  
To advertise and encourage people  
to talk to us we have promotional 
materials in GP practices, hospitals  
and libraries. Our details are in every 
edition of Hillingdon People and we 
regularly have articles published in  
the local paper, where we call for 
people’s experiences on specific 
conditions and issues. 

Social media has enabled us to engage 
with a wider audience. Residents of 
Hillingdon can express their concerns in 
real time when experiencing poor 
service via Facebook, Twitter and 
Instagram. They are also an excellent 
way to raise our profile and reach 
members of the public. We continue to 
maintain a healthy online presence and 
have seen a steady rise in the traffic to 
our website, with over 218,000 visits. 
We also use our social media platforms 
to regularly post health and social care 
information and events, and to 
encourage our online communities to 
converse with us and share their views. 

 

Page 34



Healthwatch Hillingdon     23 

                

Actively listening to people in the community – town centre event, and Uxbridge College 

 

Engaging with 
our community 
Each year we attend public engagement 
events across Hillingdon to let people know 
what we do and to hear the views and 
experiences of local health and social care 
services. 

This year we participated at 58 events 
throughout the Hillingdon borough,  
working closely with public and voluntary 
sector organisations to make sure residents 
and patients had the opportunity to have 
their say. 

With our dedicated team of volunteers, we 
held stalls at the Older People’s Assembly, 
Disability Assembly, libraries, volunteer 
fairs, shopping centres, leisure centres and 
Hillingdon Carers Fair.  We listened to 
resident’s experiences at coffee mornings 
held at Hillingdon Carers Café, the 
Alzheimer’s Society and Mind. We also: 

 held a stall at Hillingdon Fire Station, 
who for the first time ever opened its 
doors to the public by organising 
afternoon tea for a group of older 
residents.   

 visited Hillingdon Visual Impairment 
Group to speak to people with visual 
impairments about the barriers and 
challenges they encountered in accessing 

services and what they thought could be 
done to help improve their experiences. 

 visited the Alzheimer’s society and talked 
to vulnerable older people and their 
carers about their experiences of local 
services. 

 visited GP surgeries and listened to what 
patients thought about their GP practice. 

 attended the annual Play Day at 
Hillingdon Leisure Complex and spoke  
to dozens of parents about our work.  
The event was attended by over 1000 
people, so this was a great way to raise 
our profile. 

Through engaging with groups, the public 
sector, service users and other stakeholders 
we ensure that all sections of our 
communities are given a say in decisions 
that could affect their health and social 
care. We also encourage residents to speak 
out and be heard if they are unhappy with 
the way in which local services are run.    

What people talked to us about 

We listen to the public’s experiences of a 
wide range of NHS and care services, 
however the most frequently mentioned 
topics we heard about were:  

- waiting times for GP appointments  

- repeat prescriptions  

- care homes.  

Page 35



Healthwatch Hillingdon     24 

Voluntary sector  

The voluntary sector is a vital partner  
to Healthwatch Hillingdon. They often  
work with the most disadvantaged and 
marginalised communities and our close 
working relationship helps us to reach out to 
those communities whose voices are not 
often heard. 

Our work this year with the Alzheimer’s 
Society, Hillingdon Carers, The Tamil 
Community Centre, Hillingdon Mind and the 
Salvation Army has helped us to widen our 
engagement and reach voices of the 
communities and individuals who would not 
access our service, or traditionally would 
not complain if unhappy with the health and 
social care services they receive.   

Young Healthwatch 
Hillingdon 

Healthwatch Hillingdon strives to engage 
with the entire Hillingdon community, but 
we felt that we needed to do more to 
engage children and young people and 
ensure their views are represented.  

In November 2017 we created Young 
Healthwatch Hillingdon (YHwH), a new 
engagement and volunteering programme 
created specifically for young people aged 
11 to 25 who live, work or study in 
Hillingdon. 

  

We successfully applied to the Big Lottery 
‘Awards for All’ programme for funding to 
develop and deliver the first year of the 
programme, and have recruited and 

trained 17 young people across three 
different Young Healthwatch Hillingdon 
roles. 

Since receiving their training in February, 
in addition to planning their work for the 
coming year, our volunteers have: 

 Hosted a stall at Botwell Library 

 Held a Health Fair to publicise YHwH 

  Attended an event all about building a 
dementia friendly generation and 
completed Dementia Friends training 

 Conducted a survey with young people 
about their views and experiences of 
using the health app NHS Go 

  Participated in a community 
consultation for EACH Counselling and 
Support about the possibility of 
developing a community substance 
misuse education and support 
programme for young people in 
Hillingdon 

  Completed PLACE Inspection Training 
to enable them to carry out 
assessments in the coming year and 
then conducted their first PLACE 
Inspection. 

We are so proud of our Young 

Healthwatch Hillingdon volunteers, they 

are listening to their peers and making a 

difference… 

Although, we have just started on our 
journey in Young Healthwatch 
Hillingdon, I have already learnt so 
much through the training and the 
meetings. It is just a really great and 
unique opportunity to use your skills 
in the real world, and to make a real 
difference – Smriti, YHwH volunteer 

Page 36



Healthwatch Hillingdon     25 

“HEALTHFEST”

  

Page 37



Healthwatch Hillingdon     26 

Patient-Led 

Assessments of 

the Care 

Environment 

(PLACE) 

Our trained PLACE Assessors 

have:  been supporting the borough’s 
hospitals and other in-patient units 
through the year. 

Our adult assessors were busy 
this year by: carrying out the annual 

assessments for Central North West 

London NHS Trust, and at both Hillingdon 

and Mount Vernon Hospital sites for The 

Hillingdon Hospitals NHS FT.  

They also carried out additional 

assessments for the Hillingdon Hospitals 

Trust at both hospitals during the year. 

These assessments resulted in a PLACE 

improvement plan identifying key actions 

to improve the patient experience and 

hospital environments. Themes assessed 

included: 

 Privacy, Dignity and Wellbeing 

 Condition, Appearance and 
Maintenance 

 Dementia, Disability. 

A member of our assessment team 
attended the regular PLACE Improvement 
Group, which continued to monitor the 
actions, which included: 

 Identifying and implementing solutions 
to improve privacy in identified 
reception areas 

 Replace and label bins on the wards 

 Review PLACE dementia signage 
requirements and implement 
improvements 

 Prioritise the painting programme to 
take account of the PLACE dementia 
findings 

 Review where handrails can be more 

effectively placed 

 Prioritise flooring programmes for 

colour, texture and design, meeting 

the needs of dementia patients. 

Our Young Healthwatch PLACE 
assessors were also busy this 

year when: they carried out 
assessments at Hillingdon Hospital. 

On their first day, they started by 
inspecting the wards and outpatient 
clinic in the Children’s unit. The hospital 
was so impressed they asked them back 
again.  

Our Young Healthwatch PLACE assessors 
then underlined their enthusiasm and 
knowledge by helping to assess 10 wards, 
six outpatient areas, the A&E, communal 
internal areas, external grounds and 
undertook three ward food assessments. 

 

A representative from the hospital 
said: “We were very impressed by 
the Young Healthwatch Hillingdon 
assessors. They truly are a super 
addition to your volunteer group. 
We are very thankful for the work 
they carried out towards our 
national  PLACE Assessments and 
would be very pleased to welcome 
them back. Your scheme and 
approach is a flagship model for 
getting young people involved in 
their local health services, so long 
may it continue.” 

Page 38



Healthwatch Hillingdon     27 

The outcomes from all the assessments 
carried out by our Young Healthwatch 
will be included in the hospital’s final 
submission for the National PLACE Audit 
2018, the full results of which will be 
published nationally by NHS Digital in the 
autumn. 

 

 

 

 

What did our Young 

Healthwatch assessors 
think of the food at The 

Hillingdon Hospital? 

Page 39



Healthwatch Hillingdon     28 

Helping you 

find the 

answers 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 40



Healthwatch Hillingdon     29 

How we have 
helped the 
community get 
the information 
they need 

 

 

 

 

 
 

At Healthwatch Hillingdon we provide a 
comprehensive information, advice and 
signposting service to our residents, 
through a number of different ways: 

 Our shop within The Pavilions 
Shopping Centre 

 Stalls at events and fairs across the 
borough 

 Our website and social media 

 Taking telephone enquiries and 
receiving emails. 

The shop is used as a main information 
hub. We have a wide-ranging array of 
leaflets and posters to inform residents 
of how to navigate the health and social 
care system, and find the answers and 
support they need. 

As well as a signposting service, residents 
know they can come into the shop and 
will be listened to. We help people 
complain, register for health services, 
and will raise concerns on their behalf. 
We help people fully understand how to 
access services. 

Over the past year we have been able to 
assist many people who have sought our 
help. 

Poor Hospital Discharge 

A patient with bowel cancer was 
admitted to Hillingdon Hospital with a 
bowel blockage. Following treatment, 
nurses promised the family that they 
would make sure that a home care 
support package would be put in place on 
the day of his discharge. 

However, the patient was discharged at 
10pm and sent home by ambulance, 
without a package. The patient’s wife 
contacted Healthwatch Hillingdon. We 
were able to support the family to ensure 
the appropriate care package was put in 
place. This, however, was further 
evidence that serious consideration has 
to be given to a single point of access for 
discharge, something that we 
recommended in our ‘Safely Home to the 
Right Care’ discharge report. 

Health Staff Attitude 

Staff attitude remains one of the highest 
reasons for complaints reported to us by 
the public. When residents are feeling 
unwell, anxious, and stressed they find it 
difficult to deal with health workers who 
are officious, aggressive and impatient. 
We have supported residents in the 
complaints procedure and helped them 
register with a new GP where necessary. 

 

Page 41



Healthwatch Hillingdon     30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GP misdiagnosis 

Mrs C is a 94 yr old frail lady who lives alone 
in her own home. She is housebound but has 
full mental capacity. Her friend came to us 
concerned at the lack of care Mrs C was 
receiving from her GP practice. On several 
occasions when in need of an examination 
her GP would only carry out a telephone 
consultation with Mrs C, who is hard of 
hearing. The friend contacted the GP on one 
occasion when Mrs C was very ill. She was 
told not to worry as Mrs C likely only had a 
viral infection. The GP would come out to 
see her. After 10 days of illness the friend 
called 999 and Mrs C was taken to Hillingdon 
hospital. At the hospital it was discovered 
that Mrs C had actually had a heart attack 
and was also suffering with fluid on her lungs 
as well as an infection. They saved her life. 
The friend explained to us that Mrs C did not 
want to make a complaint or make a fuss 
about her GP, but now they would always go 
straight to A&E at the hospital as they had no 
faith in the GP service. Healthwatch 
supported Mrs C and her friend and also 
helped them register with another GP 
service. 

NHS inaccessible care 

M has a hearing and speech impairment but is 
able to use British Sign Language (BSL). M had 
an outpatient appointment at Hillingdon 
Hospital where she had requested BSL 
support. There was no BSL support provided 
and M found the appointment extremely 
stressful as she was not able to communicate 
with clinical staff. Her anxiety doubled when 
she feared the same thing would happen 

when she was due to be admitted for an 
operation later that month. Healthwatch 
contacted Hillingdon Hospital to ensure that 
BSL would be provided for M when she 
attended for the operation. We also 
expressed concern to hospital senior 
management as well as raising the issue at 
the hospital’s equality board. 

Patient De-registration 

During the year we heard from a number of 
patients who had been de-registered from 
their GP practices as they were now deemed 
to be ‘out of area’ patients. This included a 
vulnerable patient with mental health issues, 
and a husband and wife who both had 
multiple long-term health conditions and had 
been registered with their GP for the past 50 
years. 

Evidence suggested that these patients had 

been randomly selected, rather than it being 

a uniform process applied to all ‘out of area’ 
patients. It also transpired that the correct 

NHS England procedures had not been 

adhered to, as patients were notified in a 

terse letter, given an arbitrary notice period, 

and were not supported to find an 

alternative GP practice. 

Healthwatch Hillingdon raised these 

increased incidents with NHS England and 

the Hillingdon CCG, who spoke to the 

practices in question to ensure they acted 

within the law and followed best practice. 

We are pleased to report that since our 

intervention reports to us of ‘out-of-area’ 

deregistration has stopped, and we have 

supported patients in finding new GP services 

which have met their needs. 

 

We are really happy with the new 
GP Practice, it is so much better 
than our previous one. We should 
have moved years ago! Thank you 
for all your help 

Page 42



Healthwatch Hillingdon     31 

Making a 

difference 

together 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



Healthwatch Hillingdon     32 

Working with 

other 
organisations 

Local Partners  

• NHS Hillingdon Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

• Hillingdon Council  

• The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 

• Central and North West London NHS 
Foundation Trust 

• NHS Hillingdon Primary Care 
Confederation 

• H4All (Age UK, DASH, Hillingdon 
Carers, Harlington Hospice and 
MIND) and the wider voluntary 
sector 

• Brunel University 

The NHS, Council and Voluntary Sector 
organisations work very closely in 
Hillingdon. Local partnership working has 
flourished in recent years and 
organisation have very strong operational 
relationships. 

Healthwatch Hillingdon is recognised as 
one of these partners and we are seen as 
an independent and valued ‘critical 
friend’ within health and social care.  

Our important relationships give us 
considerable strategic input and ensure 
the public voice is shaping local 
commissioning and service delivery.  

Working in partnership makes sure that 
the projects we undertake and 
recommendations we make from the 

evidence we gather, can be progressed 
and monitored by embedding them into 
the borough’s workstreams.   

 

This year Healthwatch Hillingdon 
attended 233 health and social care 
meetings and 93 voluntary sector and 
community meetings for a wide range of 
different subjects.  

We now have a seat at almost every 
strategic and quality board in Hillingdon, 
including the Hillingdon Health and 
Wellbeing Board and Hillingdon Clinical 
Commissioning Group Governing Body.  

This year we were pleased to be invited 
by the Hillingdon Primary Care 
Confederation to sit on their Quality 
Governance Committee and asked to 
attend the Brunel Partners Academic 
Centre for Health Sciences Leadership 
Group.  

Our strategic involvement enables us to 
directly communicate with all 
organisations from operational to 
executive level, keeps us well informed 
on all matters and gives us the 
opportunity to challenge and seek 
assurances on behalf of our residents. It 
also ensures that the lived experiences of 
our patients and public are clearly heard, 
are influencing decisions and helping to 
improve care in Hillingdon.  

Page 44



Healthwatch Hillingdon     33 

Making a 

difference 
together 

 

“Help Aggie the Alien”  

We worked with the Hillingdon Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s Natasha England 
and her engagement team on their short 
story competition to promote self-care 
and prevention in Hillingdon. 

After helping them promote “Help Aggie 
the Alien” across the borough it was 
excellent to see them receive almost 180 
entrants. On 24th March 2018, it was a 
great pleasure to join the team, 
Paralympic Gold Medallist Natasha Baker 
Britain, and the Mayor of Hillingdon, to 
award prizes to the nine winning entries.  
The winning entries have been compiled 
into a “Help Aggie The Alien” children’s 
book, which is now available in schools 
and libraries around the borough.  

North West London 

With the eight Clinical Commissioning 
Committees across NWL deciding to work 
more collaboratively together it has been 
important for NWL Healthwatch to 
continue our close working relationship.  

As we have previously reported, this was 
pivitol in challenging the decision made 

by the eight NWL Clinical Commissioning 
Groups to make changes to prescribing; 
and it will be essential moving forward in 
ensuring the two million local residents 
across the eight boroughs are 
represented and informed when future 
decisions are made.   

Hillingdon Hospital –  

a voice as a Governor…. 

Healthwatch Hillingdon have a very 

positive relationship with the local 

hospital due to the nature of the project 

work which we deliver in partnership. 

This year has seen the appointment of 

our CEO onto the Trust’s Council of 

Governors. We thank the Trust for our 

appointment, which has enabled us to 

have a central role in the accountability of 

the Foundation Trust. We are working 

closely with the Trust and our fellow 

Governors, to ensure the views and 

experiences of our Trust Members and the 

wider public are represented.  

 

NHS England North West London 

Quality Safety Group 

As we have shown in previous years, at 
Healthwatch Hillingdon we are not 
content with just influencing change 
locally with our project work. This year 
has been no exception. As part of our 
wider influencing agenda we presented 
both our ‘Discharge’ and ‘Maternity’ 
reports to the NHS England NWL Quality 

Page 45



Healthwatch Hillingdon     34 

Safety Group. As a result, we were able 
to present on this work to a much wider 
audience. 

- Criteria Led Discharge  

We were invited by NHS Improvements to 
share the learning from our work on 
discharge at a national event in 
Birmingham in January 2018. We 
presented on the patient’s experience of 
discharge with The Hillingdon Hospital 
NHS FT and demonstrated the continued 
partnership working between our two 
organisations.  

 

- London Maternity Voice Partnerships 

NHS London Clinical Network invited us to 
present at the London Maternity Voice 
Partnerships Development Day at the KIA 
Oval in London in September 2017. 

With over 250 attendees it was an 
excellent opportunity to share the 
learning from our maternity project and 
communicate best practice on engaging 
and involving women and their families in 
maternity care.  

 

Healthwatch Hillingdon: bridging 
the gap between young people 

and the health and wellbeing 

board 

We were really pleased this year to see 
our work on children’s mental health 
being acknowledged by the Local 
Government Association (LGA) as an 
excellent example of how service change 
could be influenced through the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.   

A case study of our work was published 
as part of their national report ‘Lessons 
in local leadership and accountability for 
children’s mental health services’.  

The study outlines how, by working 
closely with the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, we were able to ensure that there 
is a real focus on improving children and 
young people’s emotional and mental 
wellbeing services in Hillingdon.  

http//bit.ly/2BmMGjs  

Page 46

https://www.local.gov.uk/about/campaigns/bright-futures/bright-futures-camhs/bright-futures-camhs-case-studies


Healthwatch Hillingdon     35 

Our people 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



Healthwatch Hillingdon     36 

The Healthwatch Hillingdon Staff Team…. 
 

 

Charmaine 

Goodridge 

Outreach & 
Volunteer Officer 

 

 

Pat Maher 

Administration & 
Support Officer 

 

 

Kim Markham-

Jones 

Community 
Engagement Officer 
(Children and Young 

People) 

 

Dr Tarlochan 

(Raj) Grewal 

Healthwatch 
Operations 
Coordinator 

 
 

Our Shop 

The Healthwatch Hillingdon shop in 
Uxbridge continues to be a major focal 
point for our work and we must again 
sincerely thank the Pavilions Shopping 
Centre for making this possible.  

With over eight million people recorded 
as passing through the Pavilions in 2017, 
it is an ideal location for us to reach as 
many people as possible. It provides 
residents with an easily accessible 
central location to access our signposting 
service and for us to give information, 
advice and support to our residents.  

Being directly open to the public Monday 
to Friday has enabled us to talk to 
hundreds of residents, which has been a 
rich source of information about the 
services provided in Hillingdon.  

We have continued to support other 
voluntary sector organisations to deliver 
their service. REAP (Refugees in Effective 
and Active Partnership) and the EACH 
Pukaar Domestic Violence Counselling 
Service have both been able to benefit 
by providing their services to Hillingdon 
residents every week at the shop. 

Decision making 

Our Board of Trustees and Directors in 
2017/2018 

Turkay Mahmoud, Acting Chair  

Lynn Hill, Chair Elect 01/06/2018  

Baj Mathur 

Kay Ollivierre  

Rashmi Varma  

Allen Bergson  

Arlene Jobs  

Burns Musanu 

Bill Corsar 

Stephen Otter (resigned as Chair 
on 31st December 2017)  

Richard Eason (resigned on 21st 
May 2017)

Page 48



Healthwatch Hillingdon     37 

How we involve the public 
and volunteers 

Healthwatch Hillingdon is a Company 
Limited by Guarantee and is governed by 
a Board that consists entirely of lay 
people and volunteers. Selection and 
recruitment to our Board is through an 
open and transparent recruitment 
process. 

Board members act as Directors of 
Healthwatch Hillingdon under the 
Companies Act 2006 and as Trustees of 
Healthwatch Hillingdon under the 
Charities Act 2011. 

Meetings of our Board are held quarterly 
in public and agendas, minutes and 
reports of our meetings are published on 
our website and available upon request. 

We have published our ‘Relevant Decision 
Making Policy’ on our website, setting out 
how the Healthwatch Hillingdon Board 
makes its decisions. 

This policy is reviewed annually to ensure 
that the decisions taken by Healthwatch 
Hillingdon follow national best practice 
and reflect any guidance from 
Healthwatch England. 

Additionally, Healthwatch Hillingdon have 
a suite of documents that govern the 
conduct of our business, which can be 
viewed on our website. 

Our Volunteers  

Volunteers play an important role  
in enabling Healthwatch Hillingdon  
to achieve its core functions. We 
consider ourselves very fortunate 
therefore to have a team of dedicated 
volunteers who bring with them a wealth 
of skills and experience and a passion to 
improve health and social care services 
for local people. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We value our volunteers and do our best 
to provide them with challenging and 
interesting experiences. It is important to 
develop our volunteers, increasing their 
skillsets and enhancing their CVs. Without 
their contributions it would be impossible 
to do all that we do.  

 

During 2017/18 volunteers undertook a 
range of activities on behalf of 
Healthwatch: 

 Engagement – manning stalls, 
attending events; conducting resident 
surveys for the GP Access project; 
mystery shopping 

 Social Media - raising the profile of 
Healthwatch through social media 
platforms such as Facebook, Twitter, 
YouTube and Instagram. 

Page 49



Healthwatch Hillingdon     38 

 Administration – data inputting; office 
based activities; keeping the website 
up to date 

 Representation – attending working 
groups and meetings; carrying out 
assessments and observations. 

As we continue to grow our pool of 
volunteers, we are in  a better position 
to expand the work we do and reach out 
to those communities who would 
otherwise not be heard. 

Whatever your skill, talent or 
experience, if you would like to 
participate in our work - or would like to 
build on your CV - why not contact our 
Volunteer Officer, Charmaine, to find out 
more about how you could be involved in 
your Healthwatch.  

Our volunteers each have 
a story to tell, here are 
some of them: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before beginning the PLACE inspection of 
the hospital's children wards (Peter Pan 
and Tinkerbell), Young Healthwatch 
Hillingdon members took part in the 

appropriate training. It was interesting to 
learn how different things can impact on 
patient care. We learned we would need 
to look at all aspects of cleanliness and 
give each aspect a pass, fail or a qualified 
pass – which means that some work needs 
to be done to improve. 

It was also important for us to understand 
that PLACE inspections are more than 
just swiping your finger along a rail and 
finding dust. 

Something that was quite tricky was 
keeping in mind that when carrying out 
the inspections, we had to obtain the 
viewpoint of a patient. 

Partaking in the PLACE inspection 
alongside three experienced assessors 
was reassuring; it was really great how 
much of our actual opinion and feedback 
was taken on board. It's exciting to know 
that they take young people's viewpoints 
seriously. 

As part of the inspection, we got to try 
most of the food on offer to children in 
the wards. I went in with a really 
negative misconception of hospital food 
but came out wanting more! 

Overall, it was an amazing experience 
and I would highly recommend getting 
involved with Young Healthwatch 
Hillingdon if you're aged 11-25 because 
the skills and contacts you pick up along 
the way are outstanding! 

Ema Marques’s Story 
 

Page 50



Healthwatch Hillingdon     39 

 

Angela joined Healthwatch 

Hillingdon as a volunteer during 

2017. We asked her some 

questions about her experience 

What was your situation? 

My name is Angela and I’ve been  

long-term unemployed for ten years. 

I’d been having health issues over those 

years and my confidence in ever finding 

the right type of employment to suit my 

situation declined as I reached half-way 

through those ten years. 

In an attempt to get out more and meet 

people, the opportunity came about in 

2016 when I found out about ‘Learn to be 

Well’ courses. I attended: Creative 

Writing, Christmas Wreath Making, 

Blogging, Still Life Drawing, Flower 

Arranging. 

Also, I’ve always struggled with maths 

since primary school so I signed up to 

attend classes a t  Harlington Adult 

Learning Centre. 

Unfortunately, after just over a month, 

I was unable to continue due to 

unexpected health issues. 

Where did you hear about 

Healthwatch Hillingdon and what 

made you decide to become a 

volunteer for them? 

I’d actually walked in to HWH a few years 

earlier and was given some advice from 

Raj, a former employee here. In June 

2017 I was attending an event at Botwell 

Library and came across the Healthwatch 

Hillingdon volunteer leaflet on a display 

stand. I’ve had an interest in health, 

especially because of my experiences 

with the health services and liked the 

opportunities that I saw available. 

What volunteering activities did 

you participate in whilst 

volunteering? Are you still 

volunteering now?  

I am still volunteering with the company. 

My first volunteer post was in July 2017 

at Botwell Library Coffee Morning for the 

over 60s. I took notes of the comments 

and experiences of those in attendance. 

I also went to a ‘Play Day’ at Hillingdon 

Sports and Leisure Centre where I 

participated on an information table and 

gave out HWH leaflets that explained 

about the organisation and what it was 

all about. 

Lots of computer researching was done to 

find organisations in the Hillingdon 

Borough that could benefit from being 

made aware of HWH. 

I attended an event in Yiewsley library 

and took notes of the experiences and 

comments of the females in attendance. 

In April 2018 I assisted Charmaine 

Goodridge with doing patient surveys at 

Hillingdon Hospital. 

What did/do you enjoy most about 

volunteering with Healthwatch 

Hillingdon? 

I love the variety, which I thrive on, and 

the opportunities to attend various events 

and locations. 

 

Angela Pinnock’s Story 
 

Page 51



Healthwatch Hillingdon     40 

Why would you recommend 

volunteering with Healthwatch 

Hillingdon to others? 

Because you have the chance to gain so 

many valuable skills and maybe some 

life-changing experiences that could 

possibly lead to new career opportunities 

 

 

Please say in a few words what 

your overall experience was of 

volunteering with Healthwatch 

Hillingdon?  

 

  

Volunteering for Healthwatch has 
meant so much to me. The staff 
are lovely and I really look forward 
to going there each week 

Page 52



Healthwatch Hillingdon     41 

Our plans 

for next year 

Our top priorities for 2018-2019 

1 Statutory Role  

The delivery of our statutory role will 
always be our main priority. Focusing 
upon, and listening to what our 
residents are saying, and protecting 
their rights, is key to everything we do. 

2 Establishing Young Healthwatch 
Hillingdon  

Although we have come a long way 
in such a short time it is only the 
beginning. There is so much to do 
with our Young Healthwatch 
initiative and we look forward to 
developing it further.  

The Young Healthwatch volunteers 
are already preparing for their 
official launch event in August 2018 
as well as a number of engagement 
programmes they will be 
undertaking in the summer.  

3 Care Homes  

The project with care homes will 
gather data and evidence of the 
care experienced by residents living 
in care/nursing homes in Hillingdon. 
It will also be an opportunity to 
work with residents’ relatives and 

care homes to improve the 
residents’ experiences through 

partnership working with the 
homes. 

 

4 Children and Young People’s Mental 

Health 

We will be looking to expand on the success 
of the work we have been carrying out in 
schools.  

Work is already underway in preparation 
for delivering the Mental Health and 
Wellbeing programme at another school in 
the south of the borough from September.  

With the publication of the results due in 
autumn of the Government’s Green Paper, 
another element of children and young 
people’s emotional and mental wellbeing 
we will be keeping a keen eye on is the 
continued development of the statutory 
services commissioned by the Council and 
Clinical Commissioning Group.  

In addition to these priorities we will 
continue to have an oversight of the quality 
and safety of care services in Hillingdon and 
be strategically involved in change 
programmes in the borough and across North 
West London, especially the 8 North West 
London Clinical Commissioning Group 
Collaborative as it develops and starts to 
move out of meeting in shadow form.  

It is also our intension to start to advance 
our work plan for 2019-2021. We will be 
looking to evaluate our current position and 
look at current data and patient feedback, to 
ensure the priorities we set remain relevant 
and that any emerging evidence is taken into 
consideration, as the year progresses.  

The delivery of our statutory roles 
will always be our main priority. 
Focusing upon, and listening to 
what our residents are saying, and 
protecting their rights, is key to 
everything we do 

Page 53



Healthwatch Hillingdon     42 

Financial  

Statement  

2017/18 
  

Income       £ 

Funding received from local authority to deliver local 
Healthwatch statutory activities  

166,250 

Brought forward from 2016/2017 5,886 

Additional income 22,990 

Total income  195,126 

  

Expenditure       £ 

Operational costs 19,198 

Staffing costs 135,370 

Office costs 9,416 

Total expenditure 163,984 

Balance brought forward 31,142 

NOTE: The Financial Statement is provisional and subject to the Healthwatch Hillingdon 
accounts for the year 2017-18 being examined by an independent examiner under section 
146 of the Charities Act 2011.  

Page 54



Healthwatch Hillingdon     43 

Getting in  
touch 
 

 
 

We will be making this annual report publicly available on 30th June 2018 by 

publishing it on our website and submitting it to Healthwatch England, the Care 

Quality Commission, NHS England, Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group, London 

Borough of Hillingdon, Hillingdon Health and Wellbeing Board and the Hillingdon 

External Services Scrutiny Committee. 

 

Healthwatch Hillingdon has used the Healthwatch Trademark (which covers the logo 

and Healthwatch brand) when undertaking work on our statutory activities as 

covered by the license agreement. 

 

To request a hard copy of this report, or in an alternative format, please contact us.  

© Healthwatch Hillingdon 2018 

 

 
01895 272997 

 
20 Chequers Square, The Pavilions Shopping Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1LN 

 
office@healthwatchhillingdon.org.uk 

 
www.healthwatchhillingdon.org.uk 

 
Healthwatch Hillingdon        

 
@HW_Hillingdon 

 

Company Limited by Guarantee | Company Number: 8445068  

Registered in England and Wales 

 
Registered Charity Number: 1152553 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018 

EXTERNAL SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 

Committee name External Services Select Committee 

Officer reporting Nikki O’Halloran, Chief Executive’s Office

Papers with report Appendix A – Work Programme 

Ward n/a

HEADLINES

To enable the Committee to track the progress of its work and forward plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the External Services Select Committee:

1. considers the Work Programme at Appendix A and agrees any amendments; 
2. identifies topics for the Crime and Disorder meeting on 12 February 2019; and 
3. identifies issues to be considered at the meeting on 13 March 2019.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. The Committee's meetings tend to start at either 5pm or 6pm and the witnesses attending 
each of the meetings are generally representatives from external organisations, some of 
whom travel from outside of the Borough.  The meeting dates for this municipal year are as 
follows: 

Meetings Room

Wednesday 13 June 2018, 6pm CR6
Tuesday 10 July 2018, 6pm CR6
Thursday 6 September 2018, 6pm CR6
Wednesday 10 October 2018, 6pm CR5
Tuesday 30 October 2018, 6pm CR3/CR3a
Tuesday 13 November 2018, 6pm CR6
Tuesday 11 December 2018, 6pm CR6
Tuesday 15 January 2019, 6pm CR6
Tuesday 12 February 2019, 6pm CR6
Wednesday 13 March 2019, 6pm CR6
Tuesday 30 April 2019, 6pm CR6
Wednesday 1 May 2019, 6pm CR6

2. It has previously been agreed by Members that, whilst meetings will generally start at 6pm, 
consideration will be given to revising the start time of each meeting on an ad hoc basis should 
the need arise.  Further details of the issues to be discussed at each meeting can be found at 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



Classification: Public 
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018 

Appendix A.  Members should note that further consideration will need to be given to the 
content of the meeting in March 2019.  

3. It should be noted that the Committee is required to meet with the local health trusts at least 
twice each year.  It is also required to scrutinise the crime and disorder work of the Safer 
Hillingdon Partnership (SHP).  To keep the crime and disorder meetings focussed, as well as 
receiving a general update on the performance of the SHP, specific topics are identified for 
each of the meetings and only the relevant SHP partners are invited to attend.  Consideration 
will need to be given to the topics for the meeting that has been scheduled for 12 February 
2019.  

Reviews

4. As the meetings of the External Services Select Committee usually deal with a lot of business, 
the Committee is able to set up Select Panels to undertake in depth reviews on its behalf.  
These Panels are ‘task and finish’ and their membership can comprise any London Borough 
of Hillingdon Councillor, with the exception of Cabinet Members.  

5. At its meeting on 30 October 2018, Members met with a range of organisations to discuss the 
closure of the inpatient unit at Michael Sobell Hospice and to establish what action was being 
taken to reinstate this hospice provision in the North of the Borough.  A second meeting to 
continue the questioning has been scheduled for 6pm on Tuesday 11 December 2018.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Page 58



Classification: Public
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

APPENDIX A

EXTERNAL SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE

WORK PROGRAMME

NB – all meetings start at 6pm in the Civic Centre unless otherwise indicated.

Shading indicates completed meetings

Meeting Date Agenda Item

13 June 2018

Report Deadline: 
3pm Friday 1 June 2018

The Role of Policy Overview and Select Committees

10 July 2018

Report Deadline: 
3pm Friday 29 June 2018

Health 
Performance updates and updates on significant issues:

1. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
2. Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust
3. Central & North West London NHS Foundation Trust
4. The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust
5. Public Health
6. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
7. Healthwatch Hillingdon
8. Local Medical Committee

6 September 2018

Report Deadline: 
3pm Friday 23 August 2018

Crime & Disorder
To scrutinise the issue of crime and disorder in the Borough:

1. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) – new policing 
arrangements, knife crime; closure of the child friendly 
policing facilities in Northwood. 

Update on the implementation of recommendations from 
previous scrutiny reviews:
 Criminalisation of Looked After Children 
 Child Sexual Exploitation

10 October 2018

Report Deadline: 
3pm Friday 28 September 
2018

The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust – CQC 
Inspection Report 

Major Review: Consideration of scoping report.

30 October 2018 

Report Deadline: 
3pm Friday 19 October 
2018

Hospice Provision in the North of the Borough
1. Michael Sobell Hospice Charity
2. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
3. East and North Hertfordshire NHS Trust 
4. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
5. Healthwatch Hillingdon 

Page 59



Classification: Public
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

Meeting Date Agenda Item

13 November 2018

Report Deadline: 
3pm Thursday 1 November 
2018

Health 
Performance updates and updates on significant issues:

1. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
2. Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust
3. Central & North West London NHS Foundation Trust
4. The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust
5. Public Health
6. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
7. NHS Property Services
8. Healthwatch Hillingdon

11 December 2018 

Report Deadline: 
3pm Thursday 29 
November 2018

Hospice Provision in the North of the Borough
1. Michael Sobell Hospice Charity
2. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
3. East and North Hertfordshire NHS Trust 
4. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
5. Healthwatch Hillingdon 

15 January 2019

Report Deadline: 
3pm Thursday 3 January 
2019

Cancer Screening and Diagnostics – Single Meeting 
Review

12 February 2019

Report Deadline: 
3pm Thursday 31 January 
2019

Crime & Disorder
To scrutinise the issue of crime and disorder in the Borough:

1. London Borough of Hillingdon 
2. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) 
3. Safer Neighbourhoods Team (SNT)
4. London Fire Brigade 
5. London Probation Area
6. British Transport Police
7. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group (HCCG)
8. Public Health

13 March 2019

Report Deadline: 
3pm Thursday 28 February 
2019

GP Pressures Select Panel 
Consideration of draft final report. 

10 April 2019 CANCELLED

30 April 2019 

Report Deadline: 
3pm Tuesday 16 April 2019

Health 
Quality Account reports, performance updates and updates 
on significant issues:

1. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
2. Central & North West London NHS Foundation Trust
3. Public Health
4. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
5. Healthwatch Hillingdon

Page 60



Classification: Public
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

Meeting Date Agenda Item

1 May 2019 

Report Deadline: 
3pm Wednesday 17 April 
2019

Health 
Quality Account reports, performance updates and updates 
on significant issues:

1. Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust
2. The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust
3. Public Health
4. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
5. Healthwatch Hillingdon

June 2019

Report Deadline: TBA

Update on the implementation of recommendations from 
previous scrutiny reviews:
 Hospital Discharges (SSH&PH POC)
 Community Sentencing 

July 2019

Report Deadline: TBA

Health 
Performance updates and updates on significant issues:

1. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
2. Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust
3. Central & North West London NHS Foundation Trust
4. The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust
5. Public Health
6. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
7. Healthwatch Hillingdon

September 2019

Report Deadline: TBA

Crime & Disorder
To scrutinise the issue of crime and disorder in the Borough:

1. London Borough of Hillingdon 
2. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) 
3. Safer Neighbourhoods Team (SNT)
4. London Fire Brigade 
5. London Probation Area
6. British Transport Police
7. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group (HCCG)
8. Public Health

October 2019

Report Deadline: TBA

November 2019

Report Deadline: TBA

Health 
Performance updates and updates on significant issues:

1. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
2. Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust
3. Central & North West London NHS Foundation Trust
4. The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust
5. Public Health
6. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
7. Healthwatch Hillingdon

Page 61



Classification: Public
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

Meeting Date Agenda Item

January 2020

Report Deadline: TBA

February 2020

Report Deadline: TBA

Crime & Disorder
To scrutinise the issue of crime and disorder in the Borough:

1. London Borough of Hillingdon 
2. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) 
3. Safer Neighbourhoods Team (SNT)
4. London Fire Brigade 
5. London Probation Area
6. British Transport Police
7. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group (HCCG)
8. Public Health

March 2020

Report Deadline: TBA

April 2020

Report Deadline: TBA

Health 
Quality Account reports, performance updates and updates 
on significant issues:

1. The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
2. Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust
3. Central & North West London NHS Foundation Trust
4. The London Ambulance Service NHS Trust
5. Public Health
6. Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 
7. Healthwatch Hillingdon

Possible future single meeting or major review topics and update reports

 Telecommunications - plans in place by BT regarding advancements made in 
mobile technology

 Mental health discharge
 Post Offices
 Collaborative working between THH and GPs in the community 
 Opportunities for local oversight of services provided in Hillingdon that had been 

commissioned from outside of the Borough
 Transport provision within the Borough - Transport for London (TfL), Crossrail, bus 

route changes and Dial-a-Ride

Page 62



Classification: Public
External Services Select Committee – 13 November 2018

PROPOSED MAJOR REVIEW (PANEL)

Members of the Panel: 
 Councillors Riley (Chairman), Edwards, Hurhangee, Lakhmana and Prince

Topic: GP Pressures

Meeting Action Purpose / Outcome
ESSC: 
10 October 2018

Agree Scoping Report Information and analysis

Panel: 
1st Meeting - 
TBA

Introductory Report / 
Witness Session 1

Evidence and enquiry

Panel: 
2nd Meeting - 
TBA

Witness Session 2 Evidence and enquiry

Panel: 
3rd Meeting - 
TBA

Witness Session 3 Evidence and enquiry

Panel: 
4th Meeting - 
TBA

Consider Draft Final 
Report

Proposals – agree recommendations and 
final draft report

ESSC: 
13 March 2019
(Report deadline: 28 
February 2019)

Consider Draft Final 
Report

Agree recommendations and final draft 
report

Cabinet: 
18 April 2019
(Report deadline: 3 April 
2019)

Consider Final Report Agree recommendations and final report

Additional stakeholder events, one-to-one meetings, site visits, etc, can also be set up to gather 
further evidence.

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Health Updates
	Appendix A - Healthwatch Hillingdon Annual Report 2017-18

	6 Work Programme
	Appendix A


